collection; (c) ways to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and (d) ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including the use of information technology. The comments that are submitted will be summarized and included in the NARA request for Office of Management and Budget (OMB) approval. All comments will become a matter of public record. In this notice, NARA is soliciting comments concerning the following information collection:

Title: Court Order Requirements.

OMB number: 3095-New.

Agency form number: NA Form 13027.

Type of review: Regular.

Affected public: Veterans and Former Federal civilian employees, their authorized representatives, state and local governments, and businesses.

Estimated number of respondents: 5,000.

Estimated time per response: 15 minutes.

Frequency of response: On occasion. *Estimated total annual burden hours:* 1,250 hours.

Abstract: The information collection is prescribed by 36 CFR 1228.162. In accordance with rules issued by the Office of Personnel Management, the National Personnel Records Center (NPRC) of the National Archives and Records Administration (NARA) administers Official Personnel Folders (OPF) and Employee Medical Folders (EMF) of former Federal civilian employees. In accordance with rules issued by the Department of Defense (DOD) and the Department of Transportation (DOT), the NPRC also administers military service records of veterans after discharge, retirement, and death, and the medical records of these veterans, current members of the Armed Forces, and dependents of Armed Forces personnel. The NA Form 13027, Court Order Requirements, is used to advise requesters of (1) the correct procedures to follow when requesting certified copies of records for use in civil litigation or criminal actions in courts of law and (2) the information to be provided so that records may be identified.

Dated: July 14, 1999.

L. Reynolds Cahoon,

Assistant Archivist for Human Resources and Information Services.

[FR Doc. 99–18443 Filed 7–19–99; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7515–01–P

NATIONAL FOUNDATION ON THE ARTS AND THE HUMANITIES

National Endowment for the Arts

Combined Arts Advisory Panel

Pursuant to section 10(a)(2) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (Pub. L. 92-463), as amended, notice is hereby given that meetings of the Combined Arts Panel, Local Arts Agencies Section (Creation & Presentation and Planning & Stabilization categories) to the National Council on the Arts will be held on August 4-5, 1999 in Room 708 at the Nancy Hanks Center, 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20506. The panel will meet from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. on August 4th and from 9 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on August 5th. A portion of this meeting, from 1:45 p.m. to 3 p.m. on August 5th, will be open to the public for policy discussions.

The remaining portions of this meeting, from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. on August 4th and from 9 a.m. to 1:45 p.m. and 3 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. on August 5th, are for the purpose of Panel review, discussion, evaluation, and recommendation on applications for financial assistance under the National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities Act of 1965, as amended, including information given in confidence to the agency by grant applicants. In accordance with the determination of the Chairman of May 12, 1999, these sessions will be closed to the public pursuant to (c)(4)(6) and (9)(B) of section 552b of Title 5, United States Code.

Any person may observe meetings, or portions thereof, of advisory panels which are open to the public, and, if time allows, may be permitted to participate in the panel's discussions at the discretion of the panel chairman and with the approval of the full-time Federal employee in attendance.

If you need special accommodations due to a disability, please contact the Office of AccessAbility, National Endowment for the Arts, 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20506, 202/682–5532, TDY–TDD 202/682–5496, at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

Further information with reference to this meeting can be obtained from Ms. Kathy Plowitz-Worden, Office of Guidelines & Panel Operations, National Endowment for the Arts, Washington, DC 20506, or call 202/682–5691. Dated: July 9, 1999. **Kathy Plowitz-Worden**, Panel Coordinator, Panel Operations, National Endowment for the Arts. [FR Doc. 99–18401 Filed 7–19–99; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7537–01–M

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

[Docket No. 50-410]

Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Unit No. 2); Order Extending Approval Regarding Restructuring of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation by Establishment of a Holding Company Affecting License No. NPF–69, Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Unit No. 2

I.

By Order dated July 19, 1998, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (the Commission or NRC) approved the proposed indirect transfer of Facility Operating License No. NPF-69, to the extent it is held by Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (Applicant), to an unnamed holding company to be created with the Applicant, a wholly owned subsidiary, in accordance with electric industry restructuring goals established by the New York State Public Service Commission (NYSPSC). The approval was given in response to Applicant's application dated April 8, 1998, as resubmitted June 8, 1998, and supplemented by letters dated April 22 and July 9, 1998, for consent under Section 50.80 of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR 50.80). By its terms, the Order of July 19, 1998, becomes null and void if Applicant's proposed holding company restructuring is not completed by July 19, 1999, unless on application and for good cause shown, this date is extended by the Commission.

Applicant is licensed by the Commission to own and possess a 9percent interest in Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Unit 2 (NMP2), under Facility Operating License No. NPF-69, issued by the Commission on July 2, 1987. In addition to Applicant, the other owners who may possess, but not operate, NMP2 are New York State Electric & Gas Corporation with an 18percent interest, Long Island Lighting Company with an 18-percent interest, and Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation with a 14-percent interest. Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (NMPC) owns a 41-percent interest in NMP2, is authorized to act as agent for the other owners, and has exclusive

responsibility and control over the operation and maintenance of NMP2. NMP2 is located in the town of Scriba, Oswego County, New York.

II.

Under cover of a letter dated June 7, 1999, Applicant submitted an application requesting that the expiration date set forth in the Order of July 19, 1998, be extended to June 30, 2000. According to this submittal, under the terms of paragraph VIB6 of the Amended and Restated Settlement Agreement (referenced in Part II of the NRC's Order dated July 19, 1998), the NYSPSC permitted Applicant to invest \$100 million in its unregulated subsidiaries, but only before the date the holding company restructuring is effected. Thus far, Applicant has so invested \$25.5 million. However, Applicant needs additional time to invest the remaining \$74.5 million in suitable investments. Applicant further states that there have been no material changes from the facts set forth in its previous application, as resubmitted and supplemented, leading to the Order of July 19, 1998.

The NRC staff has considered the foregoing request of June 7, 1999, and has determined that Applicant has demonstrated good cause to extend the expiration date set forth in the Order of July 19, 1998, approving the proposed restructuring.

III.

Accordingly, pursuant to Sections 161b and 161i of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, 42 USC 2201(b) and 2201(i), it is hereby ordered That the effectiveness of the Order of July 19, 1998, approving the application regarding the proposed restructuring of Applicant by the establishment of a holding company, is extended such that if the restructuring is not completed by June 30, 2000, the Order of July 19, 1998, as hereby extended, shall become null and void.

This Order is effective upon issuance. For further details with respect to this Order, see letter and request dated June 7, 1999, from Applicant which are available for public inspection at the Commission's Public Document Room, the Gelman Building, 2120 L Street, NW., Washington, DC, and at the local public document room located at the Reference and Documents Department, Penfield Library, State University of New York, Oswego, New York 13126.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 13th day of July 1999.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Samuel J. Collins.

Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation. [FR Doc. 99-18470 Filed 7-19-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7590-01-U

POSTAL SERVICE

Periodicals Rate Anomaly: Changes in Classification and Rate Schedule

AGENCY: Postal Service.

ACTION: Notice of implementation of changes to the Domestic Mail **Classification Schedule and Periodicals** Regular Rate Schedule.

SUMMARY: This notice sets forth the changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule (DMCS) section 441 and to Periodicals Regular rate schedule 421, to be implemented as a result of the July 12, 1999, Decision of the Governors of the United States Postal Service on Periodicals Classification Change.

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 1999.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: David Rubin, (202) 268-2986.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On April 9. 1999. pursuant to its authority under 39 U.S.C. 3621 et seq., the Postal Service filed with the Postal Rate Commission (PRC) a request for a recommended decision on Periodicals classification changes designed to provide a remedy to a rate anomaly resulting from the last omnibus rate case, Docket No. R97-1. The PRC designated the filing as Docket No. MC99-3. On April 23, 1999, the PRC published a notice of the filing, with a description of the Postal Service's proposal, in the Federal Register (64 FR 13613-13617).

On June 23, 1999, pursuant to its authority under 39 U.S.C. 3624, the PRC issued to the Governors of the Postal Service its recommended decision on the Postal Service's request. The PRC recommended the changes proposed by the Postal Service.

Pursuant to 39 U.S.C. 3625, the Governors of the United States Postal Service acted on the PRC's recommendations on July 12, 1999. Decision of the Governors of the United States Postal Service on the **Recommended Decision of the Postal** Rate Commission on Periodicals Classification Change, Docket No.

MC99-3. The Governors approved the Commission's recommendations. The rate schedule and classification changes approved by the Governors were attached to that decision, and are set forth below.

Also on July 12, 1999, the Board of Governors of the Postal Service, pursuant to their authority under 39 U.S.C. § 3625(f), determined to make the classification and rate schedule changes approved by the Governors effective at 12:01 a.m. on August 1, 1999 (Resolution No. 99-6).

In accordance with the aforementioned Decision of the Governors and Resolution No. 99-6, the Postal Service hereby gives notice that the classification and rate schedule changes set forth below will become effective at 12:01 a.m. on August 1, 1999. Implementing regulations also become effective at that time, as noted elsewhere in this issue.

Changes in the Domestic Mail Classification Schedule

The following material represents changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule section 441, approved by the Governors of the United States Postal Service on July 12, 1999, in response to the Postal Rate Commission's Recommended Decision in Docket No. MC99-3.

Periodicals

Classification Schedule

*

440 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION

441 Postage.

Postage must be paid on Periodicals class mail as set forth in section 3000. When the postage computed for a particular issue using the Nonprofit or Classroom rate schedule is higher than the postage computed using the Regular rate schedule, that issue is eligible to use the Regular rate schedule. For purposes of this section, the term issue is subject to certain exceptions related to separate mailings of a particular issue, as specified by the Postal Service.

Changes in Rate Schedule 421

The following material represents changes to Rate Schedule 421 approved by the Governors of the United States Postal Service on July 12, 1999, in response to the Postal Rate Commission's Recommended Decision in Docket No. MC99-3.